THE SUPPLY OF TIMBER DURING THE FIRST WORLD WAR

Few in the Government and Military establishment vealized the strategic importance of
timber at the outbreak of hostilities in 1914. At that time, 90% of the country’s needs. some
eleven and a half million tons, was imported. It wasn't until a shortage led 10 delays in building
training camps for the army that any real attempt was made to secure adequate supplies from
within these isles to cope with the huge increase in demand caused by the war.

Apart from huts for military camps, the armed forces used vast quantities of wood for
dugouts, tunnelling, duck boards, temporary (or “corduroy”™) roads. road and rail vehicles,
packing cases, ammunition boxes, telegraph poles, barbed wire stakes, ship repairs, aircraft and
hangars for them, railway sleepers and'so on. Industry vital for the production of war material
also absorbed « huge amount. The primary source of energy at this period was coal. which was
also the basic raw material for the production of gas and electricity. In total, mining and
quarrying of coal and other minerals, particularly iron ore. consumed some three and a half
million tons annually. In Cleveland alone, it was estimated that 3 million cubic feet of pitwood
was needed to produce 500,000 tons of iron ore each vear. Coal required less: on average,
between 60 and 80 tons could be extracted per ton of pitwood.

In 1915, the Home Grown Timber Committee was formed under the auspices of the Board
of Agriculture.initiallv 1o fulfil the requirements of the British Expeditionary Force in France,
although this soon broadened to include most sirategic needs. The Committee’s 1ask was

formidable. They were starting from seratch, with little expertise, equipment or skilled labour
and were heavily dependent on the timber trade, which itsell was not very well organized
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particularly in Lngland. Although it was known that about«d% of the United Kingdom was
afforested, no onc had any idea how much of the timber was any use. Administranively, the
Commilttec was taken over by the War Office’s Directorate of Timber Supply in March 1917,
but within two months, was transferred to the Board of Trade as the Timber Supply
Department with its own Controller.

liquipment, some of it designed by the Department’s own staff, was purchased in vast
quantities, despite having to compete with the military and other government ministries. Onc
particular difficulty was in obtaining light rails for tramways. Experiments were even carried
out with caterpillar tractors, but with what successis not known. Labour, too, posed problems,
many men having to be recruited from abroad, including approximately 800 Finnish seamen,
most of whom ended up in the UK after having been torpedoed; almost 1500 Portuguese and
some 350 Americans formed into the New England Sawmill Unit. By far the biggest overseas
contingents however, were the lumbermen of the Canadian Forestry Corps which, together
with the much smaller Newfoundland Forestry Corps, almost equalled the number of British
civilians employed by the Department in 1918, The Department’s achievements were
considerable for, by 1917, more than half the country’s timber and pitwood requirements were
being met. Some 182 sawmills were in operation, with a further 40 run by the Canadian and
Newfoundland Forestry Corps and the New England Sawmill Unit. By the end of the vear
some 2,231,957 tons had been procured at a cost of £3.321.490,

Haulage in and [rom the woods was mostly by horses, tractors, traction engines. steam and
petrol lorries. Raibwavs were however, also used. In the Spring of 1918, the Timber Supply
Department had about 22 miles of light 141lb rail and nearly 30 iles of 201b rail. The former of
course, could only be used for man or horse powered lines.



Examples of these were included in sawmilling plant sold by the TSD at the end of the War.
One was on the Tregoyd Estate in Breconshire, which sawed timber cut in Werniago Wood.
This had a mere 75 yards of 2 foot gauge track laid with 141Ib rail and wooden sleepers. lts entire
rolling stock consisted of two timber bogies. Another slightly longer system was leased by the
Earl of Mansfield to the Home Grown Timber Committee in 1916 and was situated in New
Scone Wood in Perthshire. This consisted of 300 yards of track (gauge unspecified) on which 4
timber bogies ran.

Of most interest to railway enthusiasts are those which employed locomotives. Few details of
these survive and those that do are scanty and tantalisingly brief. Even the locations of many are
not precisely known. It should also be appreciated that, by their very nature, timber railways
were temporary, their exact routes never being fixed for very long. Once part of a plantation
had been felled. the track was lifted and relaid in another area. Much, but by no means all of the
information which follows has been culled from the surviving documents relating to the
purchase and sale of timber and plant during and after the war. These are often particularly
frustrating for the researcher for a number of reasons. Contracts often only include information
about a railway when special provisions were made, such as when its route cut off grazing land
from a water supply. Some. such as that at Kerry. state that the route of the railway has bee
marked in red ink on an accompanying map. On many occasions, on turning to the map in
question, the authors have found no such red ink route and in at least one instance, the map is
missing altogether.

Thus. the following chapters do not claim to be a comprehensive survey of all timber light
railways. The authors are all too well aware how sparse is the information on many lines and
also. that there are a number of omissions. The activities of the CFC are well represented
although, as their lumbermen were experienced at large scale operations where the use of
railways made economic sense, this is not so surprising. It should not be forgotien though. that
there were many other railways run by British workers and German PoWs under military
control.

Standard gauge lines were relatively few and some details are appended. On the narrow
gauge the principal gauges were two and three feet with at least three lines emploving the 60cm
gauge and these used 10 h.p. petrol Baguley petrol tractors originally ordered by the French
Ministere de la Guerre in November 1916, but subsequently cancelled. They were eventually
sold 1o the Timber Supply Department in 1918, so it is likely that the ready availability of these
machines dictated the gauge of the railways they ran on. The French ordered five machines
which the TSD purchased along with two others of the same gauge between April and
November 1918. ,

Most lines of whatever gauge were simple and small in scale, with only one or wo
locomotives, a mile or two of track apd usually ten to a dozen “bogies™. The 3ft gauge railways
tended to be steam powered, whilst the narrower gauges were, on the whole. the preserve of
internal combustion engines.

As a footnote. the Timber Supply Department was replaced by the Timber Disposal Board
at the end of the War and wound up in 1922. To avoid confusion in the following chapters, it is
referred to as the Timber Supply Department throughout whether it was under the control of
the Board of Agriculture. the War Office or the Board of Trade.







Kerr Stuart 0-6-0T

A standard product of the manufacturers. the Haig class was derived from. but not identical to, the Joffres
which were constructed 1o a Decauville design for the French military. The first three Haigs had been built for
stack and had to be modified 10 suit the ‘BSI)'s specifications before they could be delivered. They were ordered
by the War Office at the same time as the first batch of Bagnalls. The final Haig was ordered at the beginning
of February 1918. Al were 3ft gauge with 8"2 x 11in cylinders.

3083

3084

3085

3089

Designated CTS 4. Dispatched on 16.10.1917 to the CFC’s base at Stewart's Lane,
Battersea on the SECR. It is not known where this locomotive worked initially, but in 1922
it was purchased along with 3084 by Leeds Corporation for use on their Leighton rescrvoir
construction job at Masham.
Designated CTS 5. Dispatched on 28.11.1917 to Ampthill: resold for use at Masham (sce
3083 above). -~ ‘
Designated CTS 6. Dispatched on 19.11.1917 to Dornoch. Te T. W. Ward, Wishaw in
August 1921, resold November 1922 1o Cottesmore lronstone Quarries, Ratland, where
scrapped January 1957,
Dispatched on 29:4.1918t0 Carr Bridge. Resold for reservoir construction work at Elslack
near Skipton. then Fernilee. Derbyshire and finally to Cottesmore Ironstone Quarries (sce
3085 above). -
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For2ft.0in to3ft.6in.

1] HAIG LA

(63 H.P.)

Gauge & for Rails 18 to 25 lbs. per yd.

Cylinders . .. ..

Diameter of Wheels over Tyres

Wheel Base

Tubes (Steel)

Working Pressure

Boiler Feed

Firebox ..

Water Tanks (Siie)

Fuel Space ..

Heating Surface -Tubes
PFirebox

" Total

Grate Area . .. ..
Approximate Weight, coapty

i in working order
Tractive Power .

-0 L-in, stroke

8L in, diam.
1 ft. 113 in,
4. 71 in,
A2 (13 in. diam.)
160 lbs. per sq. in.
Two Injectors
Steel

195 gallons
20 cu. ft.
143.5 sa. ft.
23.25 sa. ft
161.75 5. ft.
4 sq. ft.
= tons {0 cwt,
10 tons 10 cwt,
4.790 lbs.

218 mum,
00 mm.
1,400 mm.

~2 (44 mm, diam.)

1124 kes. rer sq. cm,

SC0 liwres
0.57 cu. m.
15.65 sq. m.

216 57, m.

17.81 sq. m.
0.371 sq. m.
8,635 kgs.
10.668 kgs.
2,173 kes.

250 mm.

FOR COAL OR WO0OD FUEL.



KERR STUART & Co. Ltd.
“HAIG™ CLASS
2ft GAUGE

Rivets, Bullers and Couplers not shown

1 0 1 2 3 4 Sft

| N i 3 i 3§ -
| = 5 i 4 i : & :

© D.H Gander 92



Kerr Stuart photographed the prototype Haig 0—6-0T (KS 3083/17) specially painted and lettered with the class name before delivery.
Although none were built for UK customers after the 1914/18 War, it proved a popular loco overseas, primarily for sugar cane tramways,
and indeed four more were built by Bagnall after Kerr Stuart’s demise in 1930. (Hunsler Engine Co./Armley Museum, Leeds)

Afier leaving Dornoch, Kerr Stuart 3085 spent the remainder of her life on the 31t gauge Cottesmore ironstone tramway in Rutland where
: 34 ’ gaung ')

she was later joined by KS3089, another ex-forestry Haig. Seen here about 1952, 3085 was cut up in January 1957, shortly before the
railway itself closed. (F. Jones)




